COMMONWEALTH GAMES 2010

DDA Residential Project

Response to Clarifications sought by intended Bidders during Pre-Bid Conference on May 15, 2007

	S. No.
	Clarification sought
	DDA’s response

	Commercial Queries

	1(a)
	Clause 5.3 restricts Potential Buyers identified by the Project Developer, completely excluding buyers who already own / lease a property in Delhi to purchase the Residential Apartments in the Commonwealth Games Village. Hence, this clause should be deleted.  Moreover, it is difficult for the developer to ensure such a clause.
	Clause 5.3 stands deleted

	1(b)
	To this effect an undertaking will be taken from the buyer on prescribed format, whereby the buyer will be responsible and the Project Developer should not be held responsible.
	Not applicable any more

	2
	Clause 5.7.2 states that the developer will not have any Naming Rights. Developer should get due credit to get appropriate mileage for quality services rendered for the Project. This will be in sync with the global trend of branding of international events.
	Please refer Clause 5.7.2

	3
	Clause 2.1b(ii) states that DDA shall allocate the Project Developer’s 50% share of the Residential Apartments on the basis of lottery drawn. However, it is felt that lottery system should be for ‘blocks’ of residential apartments and not for individual apartments.
	Bidders can suggest the methodology for the lottery system in their proposal. However, the decision of DDA shall be final.

	4
	Common Facilities (Annex 2, Section A, Clause 11(a)) shall be developed and disposed-off by the Project Developer post-games. This is in apparent contradiction to clause 5.2. Please clarify what all common facilities (if any) will be disposed by the Project Developer.
	Clause 5.2 rectified, the word ‘Commercial’ stands deleted.

	5
	The Project Developer (as in Clause 4.3) should not be made liable and penalized for delays due to approvals, if any.
	Please refer to Clause 4.3

	6
	The compensation for delay in meeting the milestones (as in Annex-3) should be based on fair assessment of the causes for delay and the Project Developer should not be made sole liable due to any undue penalty.
	Please refer to Annex-3

	7
	Whether the land will be registered in the Project Developer’s name?
	Please refer to Section II-A, Instructions to Bidders, Clause 2.1b (The word ‘Commercial’ in the clause stands deleted)

	8
	Can the land be mortgaged for availing loan from the bank?
	No mortgaging of land is allowed. DDA may give NOC for availing loan from the Bank.

	9
	Bid security in the form of bank guarantee is the usual norm of submission vide different organizations, and it is requested that this clause be changed to accept the Bid Security in the form of a Bank Guarantee rather than a Demand Draft.

Please allow the bidders to submit the 25% EMD by bank guarantee after technically qualified for the works. After being selected for the works, full amount will be paid through the demand draft and the B.G. for EMD can be returned.  

Further more, each party who is a member of consortium would be allowed to submit its own portion of bid security and EMD in accordance with the percentage of participation in the consortium structure. Please confirm.
	Please refer to Clause 2.14

	10
	Lottery system allocation of 50% share is perhaps not a good idea.  The Project Developer initially constructs all the buildings to the same specifications, and hand it over to the Organising committee. Instead of a lottery system of allocation, the Project Developer be given a separate set of blocks, duly identified, so that he can make changes, if necessary, and incur further expenditure, as per the demand and sells his portion of the share. 

Kindly explain the methodology for lottery system.
	Please refer to Section IV, Clause 4.2.4 and Section II-A, 2.1(b)(ii) (The word ‘Commercial’ in the clause stands deleted)

Bidders can suggest the methodology for the lottery system in their proposal. However, the decision of DDA shall be final.

	11
	Please clarify whether the Project Developer can change the consortium composition after the proposal stage.
	Please refer to Clause 2.4

	12
	The reserve price for the upfront bid amount is Rs.300 Crores as mentioned vide Clause 2.1. In addition, a performance security for Rs.500 Crores seems to be unjustifiable.  We suggest that, it should be reduced to Rs. 100 Crores to make the bid, a viable and attractive one. 

Is there any limit on the number of BGs to be submitted? Also confirm that there is no objection to take the BGs on different banks.
	Please refer to Clause 2.33(a)

The Bank Guarantee(s) totaling to Rs.500,00,00,000 can be from different scheduled commercial banks in India.

	13
	Number of returning of performance security payments may be increased in terms of achieving every two mile stones, so that it reduces the burden on the Project Developer in terms of paying the interests to the banks.
	Please refer to Section II, Instructions to Bidders, Clause E

	14
	The penalty for liquidated damages is very high. The following is suggested for consideration: 5L, 10L and 15L respectively.

In case of any delay occurs due to natural calamities like floods, earthquakes, incessant/torrential rains, can the completion date be extended without any delay charges?

We expect the DDA to give the clearances for approvals, within 15 days of submission, beyond which the developer shall be eligible to have an Extension of Time.

The achievement of mock-up unit milestone shall be de-linked with other milestones and shall be treated as an independent one.
	Please refer to Annex-3, Project Milestones and Section IV, Description of Residential Project, Clause 4.4

Please refer to Annex-10, Clause 14 on Force Majeure

Please refer to Clause 4.3.5

Please refer to Annex-3

	15
	We presume that the Common Facilities mentioned in Annex-2, Section H need not be provided in lieu of the points mentioned in Clause 4.11 of Page 32.

If these are to be built, please specify the areas that are required to be built.
	The facilities mentioned in Clause 4.11 are for the site outside the Residential Project Site and not to be developed by the Project Developer.

The Project Developer needs to develop all the Common Facilities including the ones mentioned in Annex-2, Section A, Clause 11 and Section H.

	16
	Please define the coordination and assistance to be provided for the temporary overlays by the Project Developer. Will the charges incurred for providing the temporary overlays be paid by the Project Developer?
	Please refer to Clause 6.3.1 and Clause 6.3.2 (wrongly mentioned as 6.2.1 and 6.2.2)

Basic cost of temporary overlays will be borne by DDA

	17
	There are about 9 milestones indicated in the RFP.

It is also stated in Clause 2.33 (b) that Rs.200crores shall be released on achievement of four number of milestones.

We propose to take the BGs for the performance security for two periods, one to be released for the achievement of four mile stones with a sufficient cushion of two months more than the mile stone 4, and the other to the end of the project.  This will greatly release the pressure on the contractor in paying out the interest on BGs to the banks. 

Please confirm your acceptance for the same.
	Please refer to Section II-E, Performance Security, Clause 2.33

	Technical Queries

	18
	Please confirm if the FAR of 200% will be applicable for the entire 11 hectares of the plot.
	No, FAR is allowed on the plot size which does not include one convenient shopping & one milk booth site. The total FAR area as per DDA’s assessment is 2,05,140sq.m.. The upfront payment quoted by the Bidders and DDA’s share in the Residential Facility shall be based upon the same. If more FAR area is achieved, the upfront payment and DDA’s share in the Residential Facility will be increased on pro-rata basis.

	19
	Layout Plan shows three 30 R/W internal roads and two 20 R/W internal roads. Please specify the agency for the development of these roads.
	The Project Developer is supposed to develop these roads. These roads are internal roads of the Residential zone.

Further, the Project Developer will have to develop the entire area within 11hectares including Landscaping, Horticulture, Street lighting, Electric Poles, Street furniture, Signage etc.

	20
	Annex-2, Clause 11(d) states one Housing Area Playground of 5000 sq.m. but the demarcation for the same is not shown in the Layout Plan. Kindly clarify.
	It is assumed that this is part of the central Green as specified in the control drawing.

	21
	Annex–3 states that first milestone i.e., foundation work (including plinth level) upto Plinth Level for 50% Blocks and Mock Unit has to be completed till D+120 days i.e. November 12, 2007. It is not practical to achieve first milestone, since large scale construction work is involved in it related to foundation work, construction and curing of proposed two parking floors as given in the Lay Out Plan. It is pertinent to mention here that during the above time period, the monsoon season may also cause delay because men (specially laborers), machine (heavy equipments) and material will have to be taken care of by the developer. The dispensation is sort for the first stage with no bearing on the subsequent stages.
	The first milestone may be achieved after D+150days instead of D+120days. Timelines for all the other milestones remain the same.

	22
	Kindly specify the roles and responsibilities of Independent Engineer.  Please confirm, if required, can we change the independent engineer after mutually agreement at any point of time?
	The Independent Engineer shall be a member of the Monitoring Committee. Yes, it can be changed after consent of both DDA and the Project Developer.

	23
	Work upto G+4 level with associated electric works and foundation work including Plinth Level for rest of the blocks has to be completed within D+240 days (i.e., May 2008) – As per the layout plan two floors are meant only for parking. Therefore please confirm if G+4 will include the two parking floors or only residential floors.
	G+4 level means two floors for parking (in stilt) and G+4 of residential floors.

	24
	Whether the Parking Area can be extended below the roads in Pocket A & Pocket B for smooth movement of the traffic / vehicles as the same is not clear from the Layout Plan. 
	Extension of parking area is not possible because the roads are double height roads from 203 level to 208.6 level.

	25
	The layout plan shows small pockets of land with building foot prints as marked on it. Do we have to design the building in the same footprints as marked or can we have our own layout for each pocket of land. Can various pockets be combined?
	The road network and the location of the Green areas is fixed, consequently we can not combine the blocks. This has already been approved by DUAC.

	26
	Set back areas and open spaces between two blocks are marked on the drawings. Does the Project Developer have to strictly abide by the open spaces?
	The open spaces in the Plan like the central green are sacrosanct and cannot be compromised with or changed.

	27
	Since the maintenance of all facilities to be done by the project developer and his sub agencies, the Project Developer’s staff together with the associated agencies be allowed to stay in the campus. Please confirm.
	Only maintenance staff shall stay in the campus for which costs will be borne by the Project Developer.

	28
	We presume that it is Totlots, instead of Toilets. Please confirm the same.
	In the Layout Plan please read ‘Totlots’ for ‘Toilets’

	29
	The title of technical consultant is not clear. Please clarify.
	Sub-clause stands deleted

	30
	Construction of the mock up unit is exactly starting in the rainy season and it will affect the work  due to rains and flooding

Establishment of the materials as per the proposed specification by DDA and materials approvals from DDA will also consume time. Hence, this activity consisting of four months should be flexible enough to increase the time period, in case of works getting affected with the rains and flooding, but the Project Developer should not be fined for not achieving the Mile stones. Construction of the Mock up unit and it’s approval is no doubt beneficial to the developer, for his further activities of procuring the materials, etc., While, every effort will be made by the Project Developer to get the Mock up unit built early, fines should not be imposed on the developer for not achieving the mile stones, and this should be kept at a minimum period of four months, and a maximum period of six months.
	The first milestone may be achieved after D+150days. Timelines for all the other milestones remain the same.

	31
	Based on the conceptual layout posted on the website the following are the requirement:

1. 3 mts of Earth Filling

2. Basement required below +202Mts Lvl for housing (a) the sump for water supply to the Building, (b) Sump for Fire Supply of the building, (c) To house the DG set and Pump room required for Pressurized water supply to Individual blocks.

3. Two Stilt floors are provided in such way that they are above embankment level, thereafter the residential floors are coming up

Considering the above the basement requirement, sand filling of 3 mts depth, piles to be driven, pile caps & Tie Beams together with basement slab to be interconnected & cast. We have made a program (i.e. Annex: 1) & Assumptions for the program (Annex: 2) as per which the First milestone to be amended to D+150 as a Minimum as against D+120 Days. Correspondingly the other milestones also need to be revised (statement enclosed in Annex:3).

Please review & Confirm the revised milestones indicated by us
	There is no earth filling required

Please refer to the drawings provided subsequently

Please refer to the drawings provided subsequently

The first milestone may be achieved after D+150days. Timelines for all the other milestones remain the same.

	32
	As per Clause 2.1(b) of section 2 the nine months period, means two milestones to be achieved as defined in Annex 3.  Most of the blocks as seen in the conceptual drawing layout are not exceeding six floors. The second milestone states that the structure work upto G+4 level with associated electrical works + foundation work including plinth level for rest of the blocks to be completed;. This means that upto 60% of the work completion the developer cannot sell the blocks which will be a big constraint and hardship to the developer.  This needs to be corrected and the developer should be allowed to start marketing his share after the completion of milestone no:1. Please Clarify.
	Please refer to Clause 2.1(b)

	33
	It is presumed that the power supply and water requirement for the entire residential facility in the project is taken into consideration by DDA and agreed with the corresponding statutory authorities for provision of the same.  The project developer will only be required to go and apply for the same with his calculations and drawings. Please confirm the same. 

During the construction phase the water required for the project will be supplied by the local Jal Board or not, is to be confirmed. 

In addition, please also clarify that there is no limit in going for the borewells for the requirement of water for construction purposes. 

Can the sumps required for fire/water supply be provide in the stilt floor, or should they be provided in the basement? Please clarify.

Water supply for drinking purpose during and after construction of the village is not specified. Kindly clarify with details.

Extent of coordination and assistance required for setting up of temporary overlays to be clearly defined such that the developer will take into account of the cost involved.
	Yes, the Project Developer will only be required to go and apply for the same with his calculations and drawings. The Project Developer shall have to get approval for services like water supply, sewerage and storm water drains from the concerned authorities (DJB/ MCD).

No, during the construction phase the water required for the project will not be supplied by the local Jal Board.

Yes, there is no limit in going for the borewells for the requirement of water for construction purposes with the permission of Central Ground Water Board.

Water/ Fire tanks cannot be provided in stilts as it will occupy parking space and also has to be below the level where the services have been laid.

Water supply for drinking purposed will be provided by DJB after the construction of village.

Please refer to Clause 6.3.1 and Clause 6.3.2 (wrongly mentioned as 6.2.1 and 6.2.2)



	34
	In the RFQ it was mentioned that the sewage produced will be discharged to the STP of the Akshardham temple and in the recent RFP it is mentioned that DDA is going to build an STP for the same purpose.

Will the STP be completed before the development of the project?

During the construction stage, what are the arrangements for disposal of the produced Sewage? Can this be connected to any existing line of the adjacent Akshardham temple?  Or other facilities if any needs to be specified. 

As per Annex 2 C IX Page 43, Kindly specify the charges imposed by the Delhi Jal Board if any for connection to the STP unit

Is it one time payment to be made by the developer or to be paid on annual/monthly basis by the individual residents of the project after handing over of the flats, needs to be clarified.
	STP of the Games Village and the Akshardham Temple will be common and will be constructed by DJB.

Yes it will be completed before the Games Period.

No, the Project Developer shall make its own arrangement for disposal of any Sewage during the construction stage.

The Project Developer may take the information from the Delhi Jal Board.

	35
	The supply of water from solar water heaters will be effective for only two floors from the terrace levels i.e roof and the floor below.

Beyond that, there will be losses and it will not be an efficient system. In the light of the above please specify the extent of provision of solar water heater system in the blocks/project
	Please refer to Clause VIII, Section C, Annex-2

	36
	Please specify the size of the glass shower.
	The Project Developer to decide in coordination with OC

	37
	Interlocking tiles are available in concrete and as well as in clay. And the thickness of the tiles will be usually 60mm and 80mm. Please product type to be used and its thickness.
	Concrete interlocking tiles will be used. Where vehicles are expected 80mm thick tiles may be used. In the pedestrian areas 60mm thick tiles may be used.

	38
	Boundary wall could be constructed of the following types, viz.,

1.Completely in brick work with brick pillars

2. Combination of CR stone foundation with brick work 

3. RCC frame work with Block masonry in filled. 

4. Pre-cast boundary wall.

Please confirm that the choice of the construction of boundary wall is left to the developer.
	The same may be decided by the Project Developer in consultation with DDA Architect and DUAC.

	39
	Securities set up cabins are to be provided at each building or at main entrance only need to be confirmed.
	The security cabins may be provided at the main entrance only.

	40
	Please specify if there will be any arrangement for providing temporary space near the site for labour camp, storage and handling of materials and equipment, site office etc., since the entire site is will be involved in development / construction from day one. Same is requested from DDA to be provided.
	DDA may provide a temporary site, which may be across the railway line or NH-24, on rental basis if taken outside the Residential Project Site of 11hectares only upto December 2009 at the rate of Rs.50,000/- per acre per month.

	41
	Please clarify 50 Car parking for visitors will be within or additional to the minimum number of car parks requirement.
	These parking spaces will be over and above the minimum spaces required.

	42
	Please clarify if there is a restriction on number of basements in the area.
	There will be 2 stilts starting at 203 level, so as to keep the building below the line of 226.5m on eastern boundary of the Project Site and 239.7m on western boundary of the Project Site. There is no restriction on number of basements provided the Project Developer successfully achieves the Project Milestones and all buildings remain below the above height restrictions.

	43
	The Layout Plan mentions of 2 stilts. Please specify if stilts mandatory even if we have 3 basements.
	Stilts are mandatory from the topography and the Proposed Master Plan point of view. There is also a requirement of some spaces and offices in the games mode, which shall be fulfilled by the areas in the stilts only.

	44
	Please specify whether the design of CCTV be done by DDA.
	Please refer to Clause VII, Section C, Annex-2

	45
	Please specify if substation limited to 11 KV only.
	The load requirement in the residential zone is spread across the 11 ha and there is a need to provide a number of 11KV substations as per the location of the Load centers.

	46
	Please clarify the special requirements as per DDA and Commonwealth Games Federation for Safety.
	The safety requirements will be briefed by the concerned security agencies. Provisioning requirement for pipes, cables and ducts shall be decided during the construction phase in consultation with the Monitoring Committee.

Further, please refer to Clause VII, Section C, Annex-2

	47
	Please provide details of the Boreholes location and logs.
	The details may be taken from the site Executive Engineer. There are 4 boreholes for tube-wells on the Project Site.

	48
	Temporary overlay shall be constructed by DDA or an agency nominated by DDA. Please clarify as to who would be responsible for the statutory approvals of such temporary overlays (such as clearance from the CFO and other statutory authorities).
	DDA shall be responsible for getting such approvals. However, the Project Developer should plan/ assist/ coordinate with DDA for the same.

	49
	A PDF format of the conceptual Drawing is posted on the web site, after one week of issuing the RFP. It was learnt that the DDA is yet to get the approval from DUAC, and hence the Autocad drawing of the Conceptual drawing, and each unit drawing have not been posted so far. Consequently, the Tender submission will also have to be postponed by the same period. 

We have appointed the Marketing consultant to advise us on the demand for the Apartments in the area, and the mix of different areas of the Apartments, which can go well in the vicinity. The Marketing agencies require a minimum period of two weeks for the submission of the report. Based on that report we have to advise the Architect to prepare the plans.

The Conceptual drawings of the DDA are vital to the preparation of drawings by the Architect. The Architect need  to have minimum four weeks time for the preparation of drawings, after reviewing the marketing agency report. There after to take off the Quantities, and prepare the bid also, we need minimum three weeks. 

Considering the above, We request you to consider a minimum period of eight weeks for submission of the bid, from the date of posting of the drawings on the site.
	Drawings in the auto-cad format are being provided through email by DDA.

The extended deadlines are:

Deadline for Proposal submission – June 1, 2007

Schedule for Technical Presentations by Bidders – June 2 and 3, 2007

Notification of Technically Qualified Bidders – June 8, 2007

Deadline for submission of EMD and Opening of Financial Bid – June 15, 2007

Issue of Letter of Intent to selected Project Developer – June 19, 2007

Deadline for balance payment and submission of Performance Security – July 20, 2007

Signing of the Project Development Agreement – July 25, 2007

	50
	Piping for supply of grey water to be provided for flushing and horticulture. Does this mean that a separate sump or elevated tank is required? Please clarify. This will make the cost of the unit per Sft, higher and it is not a viable proposition in the absence of an assured quantity of supply from the STP provided. Hence we suggest that this grey water utility be limited to landscaping/gardens/trees/horticulture, instead of into residential units. Please clarify.
	This will be governed by MoUD directions and DJB norms

	51
	Please issue a specific plan for the Milk Booth facility and its specification requirements. 

Also as per the site layout posted on the DDA website, where in which the roads are going across the site, the green belt, Hyumayun’s tomb access are all at predetermined locations, and the proposed blocks heights are fixed in the locations,  the spread of the block areas are in irregular shapes and it looks like the additional facilities like milk booth, recreation hall, crèche, library, society office, etc., are not a possibility.  This may be reviewed and confirmed.
	Standard plans for Milk Booth facility are available with National Dairy Development Board (Mother Dairy).

Facilities will be provided for in the layout plan which has been approved by DUAC.

	52
	Anganwaries are like schools or training centers or play area. Please clarify.
	Anganwaris refer to Crèches

	53
	Please specify the range for the costing of materials required for curtains/blinds.
	Curtains/ blinds need not be provided by the Project Developer.

	54
	Out of 5% of the units reserved for the participants with disability only one bath room in each unit will be provided with the stainless steel pipes/bars/handles near quality WC seat, shower and wash basin as per disable requirement. Please confirm.
	The facility should be provided for approximately 200 disabled participants. Since, these participants will be belonging to various participating countries, the facilities should be spread-out evenly in the Residential Facility. The exact location will be known closer to the Games when the Project Developer shall get the floor wise dispersal of these facilities approved from OC.

	55
	Number of floors of different blocks indicated in the site conceptual layout. Please specify whether we can build an overhead tank on the terrace or will it be an objection which will block the view of the temple. 

In order to cater to the requirement of water supply for this residential facility of 11 Ha area, we propose to build a water tank and supply water by gravity. Please specify the location within the plot in such a way that it will not affect the view of Akshardham temple. 

The cost/range for the mirrors may please be mentioned.
	Overhead tanks in the terrace would not be allowed if it exceeds 226.5m for a 2stilt+5-storey building, 233.1m for a 2stilt+7-storey building and 239.7m for a 2stilt+9-storey building as provided in S.No.42 above.

This is to be decided by the Project Developer in consultation with the Monitoring Committee.

This is to be decided by the Project Developer in consultation with the Monitoring Committee.

	56
	VRF type air conditioning require the piping/duct to come into the inside portion of the units. Obviously this requires to be hidden by providing a false ceiling. In the conceptual layout drawing, the floor to floor height is shown as only 3m, whereby the provision of false ceiling will reduce the  height of floor. Please clarify whether we can increase the height of the floor or review the VRF system to be replaced by another system of regular split system.
	There appears to be no need to provide false ceiling even after providing VRF system. Any increase in height shall be in contravention to the overall height restrictions.

	57
	Please specify whether DDA will be paying for the telecommunication, TV services provided.

The temporary overlays, pipes and other works have to be done by the project developer. Please clarify, whether the expenditure towards these will be paid to the Developer or not.
	Payment during the Games Period shall be borne by DDA.

Basic cost of temporary overlays will be borne by DDA. Please refer to Section VI, Clause 6.3.

	58
	It is stated that the detailed return brief of the requirements will be made available by DDA to all the bidders. Please specify the date by which time this will be made available.
	The same is being provided by DDA.

	59
	The specification for the permanent finish to be detailed and clarified.
	This shall be taken by the Project Developer at the time of Stage-II clearance from DUAC.

	60
	Geysers 25 ltrs to be provided in each bathroom –Please clarify, whether this needs to be provided in the servant’s room also. 

Solar water heater for at least 10% of residential apartments – Solar water heaters will have 15% water loss, if it exceeds two floors. Hence it will not be an economical proposition. We therefore request you to delete the provision of the solar water heaters. 

The Electrical cables from the substation to the apartment buildings must be underground Armored cables or the exposed over head cables on the poles, to be confirmed.

Please specify the type of Lightning arresters to be used
	Geysers need to be provided in all bathrooms.

This is mandatory requirement as per the conditions of environment clearance.

Only underground armored cables shall be used.

Please refer to CPWD specifications.

	61
	Solid waste disposal facility means having an incinerator at the site. Should it be provided by the Project Developer or by others needs to be clarified?
	An incinerator is not required during the Games Period. The Project Developer may decide for the post-games period.

	62
	Aerators/pressure reducing devices or sensor based controls for showers, toilets, flushing and drinking is mentioned in the Environmental report, which is not an economical proposal.  It is requested to review and delete this provision which is not specified in the minimum technical specification requirements.
	Please refer to Clause xiii, Section E, Annex-2

	63
	Please clarify that taking of sand from Yamuna river bed only is not a rigid requirement, instead earth or sand wherever available in the nearby places can also be bought and filled.
	Yes, earth or sand wherever available may be used.

	64
	Can we provide the Sumps required for water supply and fire services in the stilt floor or should they be provided in the basement only? Please clarify.
	Water/ Fire tanks cannot be provided in stilts as it will occupy parking space and also has to be below the level where the services have been laid.

	65
	The provision of Diesel generators for back-up purpose shall be automatic or manually operated to be clarified.
	DG sets shall be provided with AMF panels.

	66
	As per the requirements given in the specification the building needs to be certified for the green building requirements.

As per the green building requirement, there are about four levels of certification. We presume that the project needs to be certified for the minimum rating.  Please confirm.

As per the specifications and also the green building requirement, the roof of the building needs to be insulated against the heat.  Insulation to the roof to be either as conventional type (i.e., screed +water proofing membrane + insulation + concrete tiles on top) or the heat resisting paint on the roof surface which will take care of the water proofing and insulation. Please clarify. 

The glass specified for the windows i.e., 3.5 mm thick tinted glass will not be confirming to the Green Building requirements.  As per the Green Building requirements, the glazing should have a U= 2 to 3 W/m2  0C.  Please review and confirm the type of the glass to be provided.

Opaque wall to meet prescriptive requirement as per draft Energy Conservation Building code and provide appropriate for the following reasons, usually:

The available concrete blocks and traditional clay bricks will not met the requirements of insulation.  In the absence of non-availability of the local materials and technology has not grown to that standard in India, it is very difficult to follow this.

The other possibility is to provide cavity walls with the gap filled in between with insulation material and it will certainly delay the construction activity.

In the Gulf, the technology has developed to an extent that Auto claved aerated blocks and insulated concrete blocks which will give a value of U = 0.28 to 0.40 W/m2    0C are available. It is highly difficult proposition to import these blocks from there.

Hence, based on the above submission, it is requested to delete the provision of insulating the walls.
	These are the minimum rating requirements. However, the Project Developer is recommended to get a higher level of certification.

Provisions of the final Energy Conservation Building Code shall apply.

	67
	In the specification in Annex-2 VIII (Electrical) it is mentioned that solar power generators to be provided for common lighting in residential blocks.

Solar Power system have the following disadvantages, viz.,

Solar panels to be provided on the roof top will have a glare projecting upward. Clearnce from the Aviation clearance is required for the same.

The Solar panels provided on the roof top will also exceed in Height over the staircase slab and it may also affect the view of the Akshardham temple. 

The solar power system is to be provided by a specialized agency and for its upkeep and maintenance continuous recurring expenditure have to be born by the occupants which will be an additional monthly maintenance fee to the occupants.  This may not liked by the residents and this needs to be reviewed.

In case, if the solar system is not functioning, there must be an alternative source of power which will be through the cable system.  Thus, there are two systems which will be an additional cost to the project.

Hence, this may be reviewed and solar system is better dispensed with.

For the facilities mentioned below, viz.,

Residential blocks/Independent flat owners/common areas

Street Lighting

Lighting for landscapes, play ground

Community Halls, Milk Booths, Anganwaris, etc.,

Please clarify the distribution in terms of metering.  

It is stated vide Annex-2 : C-VIII, the solar power generator for atleast common lighting in Residential facility, it was also stated that the project developer shall provide 100% power back-up for common lighting load, lifts, Emergency services in the residential facility. DG sets for power back-up to be provided.

Clarity to be brought in terms of the DG set for power back up and solar power generators and the distribution of percentage of load between the two.

In Annex-2 C VIII, Fire detection and fire fighting system with fire alarms with PA system to be provided. Please specify the location and define the areas where it needs to be provided.

Vide Annex-2 D III (2), PVC insulated copper conductor lines as per IS 694 is specified. As per the above IS code, fire resistant low smoke wire is not a requirement.  Whereas, generally in the market fire retardant low smoke wires are available, but at a premium cost and are generally provided in the buildings.  Please clarify whether we have to provide fire resistant low smoke wire or strictly go as per IS 694.

Acceptable makes for the transformers is not specified. Please indicate the same.

MCCB panel manufacturer is not specified.  Please indicate the same.

Type of street light poles and its manufacturers may be indicated.
	This is mandatory requirement as per the conditions of environmental clearance.

The Project Developer to decide the same.

Fire detection and fire fighting system shall be provided as per the requirement of NBC-2005 and DFS.

The specifications given are minimum specification FRLS wires presently do not confirm to IS specifications.  Therefore, fire resistance wires shall be preferred which conform to IS specification.

Transformers are required to be provided by BYPL.  Accordingly, the makes have not been given.  

The panels should conform to relevant IS specifications.  

The Project Developer shall propose the type taking the aesthetics of the Games Village into consideration. The same shall be decided with due passage of time in consultation with OC.

	68
	Under Annex-2 D material specifications (page-47) it is stated that zero Ozone depleting refrigerants shall be used.  The acceptable makes mentioned against this requirement viz,., Blue Star, Voltas, etc., use refrigerant of type 410, which is environmental friendly, but not of a type of zero ozone depleting agent.  Hence, please delete the requirement of zero ozone depleting refrigerant
	The zero ozone depleting refrigerants are available in the market.

	69
	The specification calls for the Teak Wood requirement for the doors.  Whereas, it conflicts with Green Building requirements.  As per the Green Building requirements, recycled wood for door frames, panels etc., are to be used.  Please clarify whether we can avoid teak wood door frame and door panel and provide flush door consisting of particle board type and door frames with hollow steel frames filled with concrete.

As per the Green Building requirements recycled material, like fly ash blocks, fly as cement, recycled aluminium etc., needs to be used in the project.  Please confirm the acceptance of usage of above materials.
	Flush door shutters with Teak Wood veneering may be used.

	Project Development Agreement Related Queries

	70
	Clause 1.1.17 refers to Clause 6. However, there is no such reference in Clause 6.
	Printing error rectified

	71
	Clause 1.1.18 refers to Clause 8.9. However, there is no such clause.
	Printing error rectified

	72
	Clause 1.1.28 refers to Clause 12.2 (c). However, there is no such clause.
	Reference to Clause 12.2(c) corrected as reference to 11.2(b)

	73
	Clause 1.1.30 refers to Clause 12.2(f). However, there is no such clause.
	Reference to Clause 12.2(f) corrected as reference to 11.2(e)

	74
	Clause 3.6(iii) refers to Clause 5. However, there is no such reference in Clause 5.
	Reference to Clause 5 in Clause 3.6(iii) stands deleted.

	75
	Clause 4(a)(i) states that Balance payment, minimum of 75% of the quoted Upfront Amount shall be paid by the Project Developer before signing this Project Development Agreement. Since 25% after adjusting the Bid Security will be paid earlier so only 75% would be left, hence the word ‘minimum’ should be deleted from the aforementioned clause.
	The word ‘minimum’ has been added to provide for any conditionality.

	76
	Clause 5.2 refers to Clause 4.4.2. However, there is no such clause.
	Reference to Clause 4.4.2 in Clause 5.2 corrected as reference to Clause 3.5.

	77
	Clause 7.5 refers to clause 8.13.3 and 8.13.4. However, there are no such clauses.
	Reference to Clause 8.13.3 and 8.13.4 in Clause 7.5 corrected as reference to Clause 7.12.3.

	78
	Clause 7.8 states that the Project Developer should enter into Financing Agreements within 6 months from the Commencement Date. Since, the need for funding may arise after the 6 month period; hence the option should be left open to the developer to decide as to when he needs to enter into such Agreements.
	Please refer to Clause 7.8

	79
	Clause 11.2(c)(ii) refers to sub-clause (f). However, there is no such clause.
	Reference to sub-clause (f) in Clause 5.2 corrected as reference to sub-clause (e).

	80
	Clause 11.2 (d) suggests that even the Project Developer has a right to issue a termination notice. However in the entire agreement there is nothing to indicate as to what would constitute DDA’s Events of Default.
	The relevant timelines and the Project Milestones will be given due extension for any delay/ default on part of DDA.

	81
	Clause 11.2 (e) is contrary to clause 11.2 (c). Please clarify.
	Please refer to Clause 11.2(c) and 11.2(e).

	82
	Clause 14 states that DDA may provide extension to the extent of 7 Working Days to the Project Developer to cover-up the delay / failure or to fulfill its obligations. However, if Force Majeure conditions continue for a period of more than seven days then appropriate extension should be given to the developer.
	The 7 Working Days shall be counted from the day of end of Force Majeure event.

	83
	Clause 16 states that the Parties hereby agree that in relation to all other disputes arising between the parties in relation to the implementation of the Project, shall be settled by the Vice Chairman of DDA, whose decision on such matters shall be final and binding. Dispute Resolution can be done by way of Arbitration Clause.
	Dispute resolution can be through arbitration. Clause 16, Annex-10 shall now read as “Any dispute, controversy, claim or disagreement of any kind whatsoever between or among the Parties in connection with or arising out of this Agreement including breach, termination or invalidity thereof (a Dispute) shall be resolved in the following manner.

A Party may give the other Party notice that a Dispute has arisen (a “Dispute Notice”) and the Parties shall negotiate to amicably resolve the Dispute within fifteen (15) Days of the Dispute Notice (or such longer period as the Parties may mutually agree) (the “Resolution Period”). If the Dispute is not so resolved, the Dispute shall be referred to and finally resolved by arbitration irrespective of the amount in Dispute.

The arbitration shall be governed by the (India) Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 and/ or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof.

Matters to be arbitrated upon shall be referred to a sole Arbitrator where the total value of claims does not exceed Rs.15lacs. Beyond the claim limit of Rs.15lacs, there shall be three arbitrators. For this purpose DDA will make out a panel of Engineers with the requisite qualification and professional experience relevant to the field to which the contract relates. This panel will be from serving or retired Engineers of Government Departments or of Public Sector. In case of a single arbitrator, the panel will be of three Engineers, out of which the Project Developer will choose one. In case three arbitrators are to be appointed DDA will make out a panel of five. The contractor and DDA will choose one arbitrator each and the two so chosen will choose the third arbitrator. The arbitrator proceeding shall be held in Delhi only. The language of proceedings, that of documents and communication shall be English and the award shall be made in writing. The arbitrators shall be give item wise and reasoned awards in all cases where the value of total claims exceeds Rs.10lacs. Where three arbitrators have been appointed, the award by the majority will prevail.

In the event of failure to appoint the arbitrator(s) as provided aforesaid, the arbitrator(s) shall be appointed in accordance with the rules of the (India) Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996.


Corrigendum

1. Page-42, Clause VIII, Section C, Annex-2 – For provisioning of minimum speed of the lift for various blocks in the Residential Facility, ‘six storeys’ may be read as ‘six storeys above the stilt’.

2. Page-42, Clause VIII, Section C, Annex-2 – For establishing the 11KV s/stn, ‘land’, demanded by BYPL and available through DDA, may be read as ‘space’.

3. Page-52, Section H, Annex-2 – The facilities mentioned for a Club is only recommendatory.

4. No extra FAR is available for development of any Common Facilities.

5. The word ‘Commercial’ stands deleted from Annex-10, Clause 4(b) and Clause 9.2

6. Annex-10, Schedule IV, Clause 9 shall read as ‘To negotiate for the sale and/or transfer of the Project Developer’s 50% share of Residential Apartments and the rights appurtenant thereto and to enter into agreements, including the Project Developer’s 50% share of Residential Apartments’ sale agreements, containing such provisions and with such purchasers and/or other persons as provided for in the Project Development Agreement and to receive earnest moneys and/or part and/or full premium/consideration there-under.’

7. The layout plan provided to all the short-listed parties has Stage-I approval of DUAC and has been worked-out in consultation with Akshardham authorities. The unit floor plan provided is only suggestive and has been approved by the Organizing Committee. The Bidders may change the floor plan provided that the same strictly adheres to the requirements of OC given in the venue brief.

8. Instructions for Technical Presentations on June 2 and 3, 2007 by Bidders

a. All the Bidders are required to submit their respective Technical Presentation in the following format to DDA either with its Proposal or at the Venue (DDA Siri Fort Sports Complex, August Kranti Marg, New Delhi) on June 2, 2007 between 9am to 10.30am:
· 2 Hard Copies, each in Hard bound form and

· 1 Electronic Copy on a non-rewritable CD in PDF format in an appropriate CD jacket inscribed with the Bidder’s name

b. The presentation may be set-up on the system provided by DDA at the Venue through a CD or a Flash Disk.

c. All Bidders are advised to upload and check their presentation on the system provided by DDA at the Venue from 9am to 10.30am on June 2, 2007.

d. Each time slot includes time for set-up by the respective Bidder.

e. The Bidders are advised to strictly adhere to the time slot allotted to them.

f. Attending the other Bidders’ presentation is allowed only with the permission of the presenting Bidder.

g. Lunch will be served from 1pm to 2pm.

h. DDA shall not be responsible for any technical problems during the allotted time slot to the Bidder.

i. Following are the time slots:

· June 2, 2007 (Saturday)

i. 11.15am – 12noon: Ansal Properties and Infrastructure Ltd.

ii. 12.15pm – 1pm: Consortium of CSCHK-Soma Enterprises

iii. 2pm – 2.45pm: Consortium of Emaar PJSC-MGF

iv. 3pm – 3.45pm: Consortium of Namkwang-SPSL-PDI-CMCL

v. 4pm – 4.45pm: Consortium of Unitech Ltd.-IL&FS-PSDA-FCL

vi. 5pm – 5.45pm: DLF Ltd.

· June 3, 2007 (Sunday)

vii. 11.15am – 12noon: Larsen and Toubro Ltd.

viii. 12.15pm – 1pm: Nagarjuna Construction Co. Ltd.

ix. 2pm – 2.45pm: Omaxe Ltd.

x. 3pm – 3.45pm: Parsvnath Developers Ltd.

xi. 4pm – 4.45pm: Shapoorji Pallonji & Co. Ltd.

9. In case any Pre-qualified Party fails to or chooses not to give any presentation, its bid will be cancelled and its time slot for presentation will be allotted to the next slotted Pre-qualified Party.
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